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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 13AFR 22 PR B G Qé

FOR THE DISTRICT OF NEW MEXICO CLERK-LAS CRUCRQ

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA,

Plaintiff, crimmvaL No VDCRIAD R
Vs, Count I: 21 US.C. § 846: Conspiracy;
RODOLFO LOPEZ, Count 2: 18 U.S.C. § 1956(h): Money

MAYRA ELIZABETH MARTINEZ-GIRON, Laundering Conspiracy;

CHRISTIAN HUGO CONTRERAS,
JESUS NOE LOPEZ-TELLEZ,
HUGO ALEJANDRO LOPEZ-TELLEZ,

Counts 3 and 4: 21 U.S.C. § 856(a)(2):
Managing or Controlling a Residence for
the Purpose of Storing a Controlled
Substance;

ANDREW OCANAS GARZA,
DOUGLAS K. MAYES,
CLAUDIA BERENICE HERNANDEZ,

OMAR ORTIZ, Counts 5, 9, 10, 12, 16, 17, 20, 24, 29 and
and ARTHUR LUNA, 35: 21 U.S.C. § 843(b): Use of a
Communication Facility to Further the
Defendants. Commission of a Drug Trafficking

Crime; 18 U.S.C. § 2: Aiding and
Abetting;

Counts 6, 8, 11, 13, 15, 18, 21, 23, 25,
27,28, 30, 32-34, 36, 38, 39, and 41: 21
U.S.C. §§ 841(a)(1) and (bX1)(D):
Possession With Intent to Distribute
Marijuana; 18 U.S.C. § 2: Aiding and
Abetting;

Counts 7, 14, 22, 26, 31, 37, and 40: 21
U.S.C. §§ 841(a)(1) and (b)(1)D):
Distribution of Marijuana; 18 U.S.C. § 2:
Aiding and Abetting;

Counts 19 and 42: 18 U.S.C.
§ 1956(a)(1)(B)(i): Money Laundering;
18 U.S.C. § 2: Aiding and Abetting.
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INDICTMENT

The Grand Jury charges:




Case 5:15-cr-01415-RB Document 2 Filed 04/22/15 Page 2 of 29

| Count 1

From oﬁ or about November 24, 2014, and continuing to on or about April 22, 2015, in
Chaves County, in the District of New Mexico and elsewhere, the defendants, RODOLFO
LOPEZ, MAYRA ELIZABETH MARTINEZ-GIRON, CHRISTIAN HUGO
CONTRERAS, JESUS NOE LOPEZ-TELLEZ, HUGO ALEJANDRO LOPEZ-TELLEZ,
ANDREW OCANAS GARZA, DOUGLAS K. MAYES, CLAUDIA BERENICE
HERNANDEZ, OMAR ORTIZ, and ARTHUR LUNA, unlawfully, knowingly and
intentionally combined, conspired, confederated, agreed and acted interdependently with each
other and with other persons whose names are known and unknonn to the Grand Jury to commit

an offense against the United States, specifically, possession with intent to distribute marijuana,

contrary to 21 U.S.C. §§ 841¢a)(1).

Quantity of Marijuana Involved in the Conspiracy

With respeﬁt to RODOLFO LOPEZ, MAYRA ELIZABETH MARTINEZ-GIRON,
CHRISTIAN HUGO CONTRERAS, JESUS NOE LOPEZ-TELLEZ, HUGO
ALEJANDRO LOPEZ-TELLEZ, and ANDREW OCANAS GARZA, the amount involved
in the conspiracy attributable to them as a result of their own conduct, and the conduct of other
conspirators reasonably foreseeable to them, is 100 kilograms and more éf a mixture and
substance containing a detectable amount of marijuana, contrary to 21 U.S.C. § 841(b)(1)(B).

With respect to DOUGLAS K. MAYES, CLAUDIA BERENICE HERNANDEZ,
OMAR ORTIZ, and ARTHUR LUNA, the amount involved in the conspiracy attributable to

them as a result of their own conduct, and the conduct of other conspirators reasonably

foreseeable to them, is 50 kilograms and more of a mixture and substance containing a detectable

amount of marijuana, contrary to 21 U.S.C. § 841(b)(1)(C).
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Overt Acts

In furtherance of the conspiracy, and to accomplish the objectives of the conspiracy, the
following acts, among others, were committed:
Overt Act One
On November 24, 2014, in a telephone call, Christian Hugo Contreras agreed to send
Hugo Alejandro Lopez-Tellez 31 pdunds of marijuana, and 20 pounds of that marijuana would

" be delivered to Douglas K. Mayes for $7,000.
Qvert Act Two
On November 25, 2014, Christian Hugo Contreras sént 31 pounds of marijuana to Hugo

Alejandro Lopez-Tellez with his couriérs, Claudia Berenice Hernandez and Omar Ortiz, who

transported it to Roswell, New Mexico.

Overt Act Three
On November 25, 2014, Hugo Alejandro Lopez~Tellei delivered 20 pounds of marijuana
to Douglas K. Mayes.
Overt Act Four
On November 25, 2014, Douglas K. Mayes re.ceived 20 pounds of marijuana that he
intended to give to other people.
Qvert Act Five
On December 4, 2014, in a'telephone conversation, Jesus Noe Lopez-Tellez and Hugo
Alejandro Lopez-Tellez discuss.ed a marijuana delivery earlier that day to Jesus Noe Lopez-

Tellez and Hugo Algjandro Lopez-Tellez’ intent to send drug proceeds to Christian Hugo

Contreras with his couriers.
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Overt Act Six
On December 4, 2014, in a telephone conversation, Jesus Noe LOpez—Telléz and Hugo
Alejandro Lopez-Tellez discussed the drug business in Roswell, New Mexico, and that Hugo
Alejandro_ LOpez-TeIlez was charging Douglas K. Mayes $425 per pound of marijuana.
Overt Act Seven
On December 15, 2014, in a telephone conversation, Christian .Hugo Contreras offered to
send Hugo Alejandro Lopez-Tellez 40 pounds of marijuana on December 19, 2014.
Overt Act Eight
On December 18, 2014, in a telephone call, Christian Hugo Contreras told Hugo
Alejandro Lopez-Tellez he would not be able to send 40 pounds of marijuaﬁa until December 20,
2014, and Hugo Alejandro Lopez-Tellez informed Christian Hugo Contreras that Douglas K.
Mayes was waiting for the delivery.
Qvert Act Nine
On December 19, 2014, in a telephone conversation, Jesus Noe Lopez-Telllez and Hugo
Alejandro Lopez-Tellez discussed several potential drug loads and decided to tell Christian Hugo
Contreras to send to Jeéus Noe Lopez-Tellez the 40 pounds of marijuana originally to be sent to
Hugo Alejandro Lopez-Tellez on December 20, 2014.
Overt Act Ten
On December 20, 2014, Christian Hugo Contreras sent 40 pounds of marijuana to Jesus

Noe Lopez-Tellez.

Overt Act Eleven

On January 13, 2015, in a series of text messages, Christian Hugo Contreras arranged for

Claudia Berenice Hernandez to pick up marijuana the following day,
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Overt Act Twelve

On January 14, 2015, in a series of text messages, Christian Hugo Contreras told Claudia
Berenice Hernandez that she would take 20 pounds of marijuana to Jesus Noe Lopez-Tellez and
that she would deliver additional marijuana to Hugo Algjandro Lopez-Tellez a few days later.

Overt Act Thirteen

" On January 15, 2015, in a series of text mességes, Jesus Noe Lopez-Tellez arranged to
deliver marijuana to Andrew Ocanas Garza later in the day, and Andrew Ocanas Garé,a indicated
he intended to distribute that marijuan:a to a customer who had been waiting,

| Overt Act Fourteen
On January 15, 2015, Christian Hugo Contreras sent 20 pounds of marijuana to Jesus Noe
Lopez-Tellez, with his couriers, Claudia Berenice Hemandei and Omar Ortiz, who traveled
through New Mexico.
Overt Act Fifteen
On January 16, 2015, in a telephone conversation, Claudia Berenice Hernandez agreed
with Christian Hugo Contreras that she and Omar Ortiz would transport marijuana to Hugo
Alejandro Lopez-Tellez the following day.
, Qvert Act Sixteen
On January 16, 2015, in a telephone conversation, Christian Hugo Contreras and Hugo
Alejandro Lopez-Tellez agreed that Christian Hugo Contreras would send 30 pounds of
marijuana to Hugo Alejandro Lopez-Tellez the following day.
Overt Act Seventeen
On January 16, 2015, Claudia Berenice Hernandez and Omar Ortiz left their car with

Christian Hugo Contreras so that he could load it with marijuana.
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Qvert Act Eighteen
On January 17, 2015, Christian Hugo Contreras sent 30 pounds of marijuana to Hugo
Alejandro Lopez-Tellez with his couriers, Clandia Berenice Hernandez and Omar Ortiz, who

transported it to Roswell, New Mexico.

Overt Act Nineteen

On January 17, 2015, Hugo Alejandro Lopez-Tellez delivered 30 pounds of marijuana to

Douglas K. Mayes.
QOvert Act Twenty

On January 17, 2015, Douglas K. Mayes received 30 pounds of marijuana that he

intended to give to other people.

Overt Act Twenty-One

On January 23, 2015, in a telephone conversation, Christian Hugo Contreras instructed
Jesus Noe Lopez-Tellez to get a new telephone and also agreed to send more marijuana to Jesus
Noe Lopez-Tellez soon.

Overt Act Twenty-Two

On January 25, 2015, in a telephone conversation, Jesus Noe Lopez-Tellez and Andrew
Ocanas Garza discussed their frustration that Christian Hugo Contreras still had not sent more

marijuana to them,

Qvert Act Twenty-Three

On January 28, 2015, in a telephone conversation, Hugo Alejandro Lopez-Tellez and
Douglas K. Mayes agreed they were ready for a new shipment of marijuana to be delivered later

that week,
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Overt Act Twenty-Four

On January 28, 2015, in a telephone conversation, Hugo Alejandro Lopez-Tellez and
Christian Hugo Contreras agreed that Christian Hugo Contreras would send 30 pounds of
marijuana to Hugo Alejandro Lopez-Tellez later in the week, and Hugo Alejandro Lopez-Tellez

confirmed that Christian Hugo Contreras had not already delivered marijuana to Jesus Noe

- Lopez-Tellez.

Overt Act Twenty-Five

On January 30, 2015, by text message, Christian Hugo Contreras informed Jesus Noe
Lopez-Tellez that he would send marijuana to Jesus Noe Lopez-Tellez the following day.
Overt Act Twenty-Six
On January 31, 2015, Christian Hugo Contreras sent 20 pounds of marijuana to Jesus Noe
Lopez-Tellez with his couriers, Claudia Berenice Hernandez and Omar Ortiz, who transported it
to Roswell, New Mexico,

Overt Act Twenty-Seven

On January 31, 2015, in a telephone conversation, Jesus Noe Lopez-Tellez told Andrew
Ocanas Garza that he had received 20 pounds of marijuana that he would deliver to Andrew
Ocanas Garza the following day, and Andrew Ocanas Garza indicated he would be home to
receive the marijuana. |

Qvert Act Twenty-Eight

On January 31, 2015, in a telephone conversation, Christian Hugo Contreras told Hugo
Alejandro Lopez-Tellez that Ciaudia Berenice Hernandez and Omar Ortiz were transporting

marijuana to Roswell that night and would deliver it early the next moming.




Case 5:15-¢cr-01415-RB  Document 2 Filed 04/22/15 Page 8 of 29

Overt Act Twenty-Nine

On February 1, 2015; Jesus Noe Lopez-Tellez warned Hugo Alejandro Lopez-Tellez to
watch for law enforcement when he received marijuana from Claudia Berenice Hernandez and
Omar Ortiz because they had been stopped by law enforcement the previous day and were
caught with drug proceeds.

Overt Act Thirty

On February 1, 2015, Christian Hugo Contreras sent 25 pounds of marijuana to Hugo
Alejandro Lopez-Tellez with his couriers, Claudia Berenice Hernandez and Omar Ortiz, who
transported it to Roswell, New Mexico.

Overt Act Thirty-One

On February 1, 2015, Hugo Alejandro Lopez-Tellez delivered 25 pounds of marijuana to
Douglas K. Mayes,

Qvert Act Thirty-Two

On February 1, 2015, Douglas K. Mayes received 25 pounds of marijuana that he
intended to give to other people.
Overt Act Thirty-Three
On February 14, 2015, in a telephone conversation, Christian Hugo Contreras told Hugo
Alejandro Lopez-Tellez that he only sent 24 pounds of marijuana.

Overt Act Thirty-Four

On February 14, 2015, Christian Hugo Contreras sent 24 pounds of marijuana to Hugo

Alejandro Lopez-Tellez with his couriers, Claudia Berenice Hernandez and Omar Ortiz, who

tranSportéd it to Roswel], New Mexico.
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Overt Act Thirty-Five

On February 14, 2015, Hugo Alejandro Lopez-Tellez delivered 24 pounds of marijuana

to Douglas K. Mayes.

Overt Act Thirty-Six

On February 14, 2015, Douglas K. Mayes received 24 pounds of marijuana that he

intended to give to other people.

Overt Act Thirty-Seven
On February 17, 2015, in a series of text messages, Christian Hugo Contreras agreed to
send marijuana to Jesus Noe Lopez-Tellez early the next day.

Overt Act Thirty-Eight
On February 17, 2015, Claudia Berenice Hernandez and Omar Ortiz drove around for
hours in a rented Nissan Altima trying to make room in the gas tank for Christian Hugo |
Contreras to load it with marijuana.

Qvert Act Thirty-Nine

On Fébruary 17, 2015, in a series of text messages, Andrew Ocanas Garza asked Jesus

 Noe Lopez-Tellez when the next load of marijuana would arrive because Andrew Ocanas Garza

needed more and Jesus Noe Lopez-Tellez indicated the load of marijuana would be delivered on

February 18, 2015.

Overt Act Forty

On February 18, 2015, Christian Hugo Contreras sent 23 pounds of marijuana to Jesus
Noe Lopez-Tellez with his couriers, Claudia Berenice Hernandez and Omar Ortiz who traveled

through New Mexico,
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Overt Act Forty-One

On February 20, 2015, in a telephone conversation, Rodolfo Lopez and Christian Hugo
Contreras agreed that Rodolfo Lopez would supply Christian Hugo Contreras with 35 pounds of

martjuana.
Overt Act Forty-Two
On February 20, 2015, Christian Hugo Contreras picked up 35 pounds of marijuana from
Rodolfo Lopez and Mayra Elizabeth Martinez-Giron.

Overt Act Forty-Three

On February 21, 2015, in a telephone conversation, Christian Hugo Contreras told Hugo
Alejandro Lopez-Tellez that he sent 35 pounds of marijuana that would be delivered to Hugo
Alejandro Lopez-Tellez that day.

Qvert Act Forty-Four

On February 21, 2015, Christian Hugo Contreras sent 35 pounds of marijuana to Hugo
Alejandro Lopez-Tellez with his couriers, Claudia Berenice Hernandez and Omar Ortiz, who

transported it to Roswell, New Mexico,

Overt Act Forty-Five

On February 21, 2015, Hugo Alejandro Lopez-Tellez delivered 35 pounds of marijuana

to Douglas K. Mayes.

Overt Act Forty-Six

On February 21, 2015, Douglas K. Mayes received 35 pounds of marijuana that he

intended to give to other people.

10
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QOvert Act Forty-Seven

On February 21, 2015, Arthur Luna received eight pounds of marijuana from Douglas K.
Mayes that Arthur Luna intended to distribute to other people.
QOvert Act Forty-Eight
On March 2, 2015, in a telephone conversation, Christian Hugo Contreras ordered 40
pounds of martjuana from Rodolfo Lopez for later in the week.

Overt Act Forty-Nine

On March 2, 2015, in a telephone conversation, Christian Hugo Contreras told Jesus Noe
Lopez-Tellez that he would not have marijuana until March 4, 2015, and they agreed that it

would then be delivered to Jesus Noe Lopez-Tellez early on March 3, 2015.

Overt Act Fifty

On March 4, 2015, in a telephone conversation, Rodolfo Lopez instructed Christian Hugo
Contreras to pick up marijuana from Rodolfo Lopez and Mayra Elizabeth Martinez-Giron’s
residence because they did not want to assume the risk for storing the marijuana that Christian
Hugo Contreras would transport the next day.

| Overt Act Fifty-One

On March §, 2015, Christian Hugo Contreras picked up additional marijuana from
Rodolfo Lopez and Mayra Elizabeth Martinez-Giron's residence and ‘loaded it in Claudia
Berenice Hernandez and Omar Ortiz’ car for transportation the following day.

Overt Act Fifiv-Two

On March 6, 2015, Christian Hugo Contreras sent 40 pounds of marijuana to Jesus Noe

Lopez-Tellez, with his couriers, Claudia Berenice Hernandez and Omar Ortiz, who traveled

through New Mexico.

11
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Overt Act Fifty-Three

On March 6, 2015, in a telephone conversation, Christian Hugo Contreras informed Jesus
Noe Lopez-Tellez that he sent 40 pound of high quality marijuana, but that if Claudia Berenice
Hernandez and Omar Ortiz asked how much they delivered, Jesus Noe Lopez-Tellez should tell
them it was 6rily 32 pounds.

QOvert Act Fifty-Four

On March 11, 2015, in a telephone conversation, Christian Hugo Contreras and Claudia
Berenice Hernandez agreed that she would still transport marijuana for him even if Omar Ortiz

was not available to travel with her.

Overt Act Fifty-Five

On March 14, 2015, in a telephone conversation, Christian Hugo Contreras and Hugo
Alejandro Lopez-Tellez discussed 35 pounds of high quality marijuana that Christian Hugo

Contreras was sending for Hugo Alejandro Lopez-Tellez to deliver to Douglas K. Mayes.

Overt Act Fifty-Six

On March 14, 20135, Christian Hugo Contreras sent 35 pounds of marijuana to Hugo
Alejandro Lopez-Tellez with his couriers, Claudia Berenice Hernandez and Omar Ortiz, who
“transported it to Roswell, New Mexico.

Overt Act Fifty-Seven

On March 14, 2015, Hugo Alejandro Lopez-Tellez delivered 35 pounds of marijuana to

Douglas K. Mayes.
QOvert Act Fifty-Eight

On March 14, 2015, Douglas K. Mayes received 35 pounds of marijuana which he

intended to give to other people.

12
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Overt Act Fifty-Nine

On March 27, 2015, Christian Hugo Contreras picked up 35 pounds of marijuana from
Rodolfo Lopez and Mayra Elizabeth Martinez-Giron’s residence and loaded it into Claudia
Berenice Hernandez and Omar Ortiz’ car for transportation the following day.

Overt Act Sixty

On March 28, 2015, Jesus Noe Lopez-Tellez called Hugo Alejandro Lopez-Tellez to
inquire as to the status of a load of marijuana that Christian Hugo Contreras was sending that
day.

Overt Act Sixty-One

On March 28, 2015, Christian Hugo Contreras sent 35 pounds of marijuana to Hugo -
Alejandro Lopez-Tellez with his couriers, Claudia Berenice Hernandez and Omar Ortiz, who

transported it to Roswell, New Mexico.

Qvert Act Sixty-Two

On March 28, 2015, Hugo Alejandro Lopez-Tellez delivered 35 pounds of marijuana to

Douglas K. Mayes.
Qvert Act Sixty-Three

On March 28, 2015, Douglas K. Mayes received 35 pounds of marijuana which he
intended to give to other people.

In violatidﬁ of 21 U.S.C. § 846.

Count 2

From on or about November 24, 2014, and continuing to on or about April 11, 2015, in

Chaves County, in the District of New Mexico and elsewhere, the defendants, CHRISTIAN

HUGO CONTRERAS, JESUS NOE LOPEZ-TELLEZ, HUGO ALEJANDRO LOPEZ-

13
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TELLEZ, CLAUDIA BERENICE HERNANDEZ and OMAR ORTIZ, unlawfully,
knowingly and intentionally combined, conspired, confederated, agreed and acted
interdependently with each other and with other persons whose names are known and unknown
to the Grand Jury to commit an offense against the United States, specifically, money laundering,
comrary to 1956(a)(2)(A).
Overt Acts

In furtherance of the conspiracy, and to accomplish the objectives of the conspiracy, the

following acts, among others, were committed:
Qvert Act One

On November 25, 2014, Hugo Alejandro Lopez-Tellez gave $5,000 in drug proceeds to

Claudia Berenice Hernandez and Omar Ortiz, and they transported the money to Christian Hugo

Contreras.
Qvert Act Two
On December 2, 2014, Christian Hugo Contreras and Hugo Alejandro Lopez-Tellez
arranged to have Claudia Berenice Hernandez and Omar Ortiz drive to Hugo Alejandro Lopez-
Tellez’ residence in order pick up part of the drug proceeds from Douglas K. Mayes after they

delivered marijuana to Jesus Noe Lopez-Tellez later in the week.

Overt Act Three

On December 4, 2014, at the direction of Christian Hugo Contreras, Hugo Alejandro
Lopez-Tellez gave $1,000 of drug proceeds to Claudia Berenice Hernandez and Omar Ortiz
“covered up” so that they could hide the money while they transported it back to Christian Hugo

Contreras,

14
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Overt Act Four
On January 15, 2015, while Claudia Berenice Hernandez and Omar Ortiz were delivering
marijuana to Jesus Noe Lopez-Tellez, Christian Hugo Contreras called and instructed them to
travel to Roswell to pick up drug proceeds from Hugo Alejandro Lopez-Tellez.
Overt Act Five
On January 15, 2015, Hugo Alejandro Lopez-Teliez provided drug proceeds to Claudia

Berenice Hernandez and Omar Ortiz, and they transported the money back to Christian Hugo

Contreras,

Overt Act Six
On January 17, 2015, while delivering marijuana to Hugo Alejandro Lopez-Tellez,
Claudia Berenice Herandez and Omar Ortiz received drug proceeds from him which they

transported back and delivered to Christian Hugo Contreras.

Qvert Act Seven
On Janqary 23, 2015, in a telephone conversation, Hugo Alejandro Lopez-Tellez
informed Christian Hugo Contreras that he had drug proceeds to pay Christian Hugo Contreras.
Overt Act Eight
On January 31, 2015, in a telephone conversation, Christian Hugo Contreras and Jesus -
Noe Lopez-Tellez discussed the price of the marijuana that Christian Hugo Contreras had
provided, and fhat Jesus Noe Lopez-Tellez sent about $10,100 in proceeds with Claudia Berenice
Hernandez and Omar Oriiz after they delivered marijuana to Jesus Noe Lopez-Tellez earlier that
day. |
Overt Act Nine
On January 31, 2015, Jesus Noe Lopez-Tellez provided Claudia Berenice Hernandez and

Omar Ortiz $10,115 in drug proceeds that they hid within the back seat of their car in order to

15
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transport the money back to Christian Hugo Contreras undetected, but the money was seized by
law enforcement during a traffic stop.
Overt Act Ten

On February 4, 201 5, Jesus Noe Lopez-Tellez met with Andrew Ocanas Garza and

received half of the drug proceeds that Andrew Ocanas Garza owed to Christian Hugo Contreras.
Qvert Act Eleven

On February 14, 2015, after receiving marijuana from them, Hugo Alejandro Lopez-

Tellez gave drug proceeds to Claudia Berenice Hernandez and Omar Ortiz, and they transported

and later delivered the money to Christian Hugo Contreras.

Overt Act Twelve

‘On February 14, 2015, after receiving Hugo Alejandro Lopez-Tellez’ drug proceeds from
Claudia Berenice Hernandez and Omar Ortiz, Christian Hugo Contreras delivered the drug
money to Mayra Elizabeth Martinez-Giron.

Overt Act Thirteen

On March 6, 2015, Rodolfo Lopez explained to Christian Hugo Contreras the breakdown
of the $11,700 in drug proceeds that Christian Hugo Contreras owed. Christian Hugo Contreras
refused to pay the entire amount at thaf time, but told Rodolfo Lopez where to pick up part of the
drug money which was hidden in one of Christian Hugo Contreras’s trucks.

Overt Act Fourteen

On March 15, 2015, Christian Hugo Contreras picked up Hugo Alejandro Lopez-Tellez’

drug proceeds from Claudia Berenice Hernandez and Omar Ortiz and then delivered the drug

money to Rodolfo Lopez.

16
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Qvert Act Fifteen

On March 28, 20I15, Douglas K. Mayes provided $12,051 drug proceeds to Hugo
Alejandro Lopez-Tellez, which he in turn provided to Claudia Berenice Hernandez and Omar
Ortiz to transport to Christian Hugo Contreras. The drug proceeds were seized during a traffic
stop and Claudia Berenice Hernandez and Omar Ortiz attempted to explain the money as
legitimate earnings based on bank statements they had with them.

In violation of 18 U.S.C. § 1956(h).

Count 3

From on or about November 24, 2014, and continuing to on or about March 31, 2015, in
Chaves County, ih the District of New Mexico, the defendants, JESUS NOE LOPEZ-TELLEZ
and HUGO ALEJANDRO LOPEZ-TELLEZ, while managing or controlling a residence at
909 Avenida Ménana in Roswell, New Mexico, knowingly and intentional]y did make it
available for the purpose of unléwfully storing a controlled substance, marijuana.

In violation of 21 U.8.C. § 856(a)(2), and 18 U.S.C. § 2.

Count 4

From on or about November 24, 2014, and continuing to .on or about April 22, 2015, in
Chaves County, in the District of New Mexico, the defendant, DOUGLAS K. MAYES, while
managing or controlling a residence at 1213 W. Demiing Street in Roswell, New Mexico,
knowingly and intentionally did make it available for the purpose of unlawfully storing a
controlled substance, marijuana.

In violation of 21 U.8.C. § 856{a)(2), and 18 U.S.C. § 2.

Count 5
On or about November 24, 2014, in Chaves County, in the District of New Mexico, the

defendants, CHRISTIAN HUGO CONTRERAS and HUGO ALEJANDRO LOPEZ-

17
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TELLEZ, unlawfully, knowingly and intentionally did use a communication facility, to wit: a
telephone, to further the commission of a drug trafficking crime, to wit: conspiracy to possess
with intent to distribu_te a controlled substance, contrary to 21 U.S.C. § 846.
In violation of 21 U.S.C. § 843(b) and 18 U.S.C. § 2.
Count 6
. On or about November 235, 2014, in Chaves County, in the District of New Mexico, the
defendants, CHRISTIAN HUGO CONTRERAS, CLAUDIA BERENICE HERNANDEZ,
and OMAR ORTIZ, unlawfully, knowingly and intentionally possessed with intent to distribute
marijuana,
In violation of 21 U.8.C. §§ 841(a)(1) and (b)(1}(D), and 18 U.S.C. § 2.
Count 7
On or about November 25, 2014, in Chaves Coimty, in the District of New Mexico, the
defendant, HUGO ALEJANDRO LOPEZ—TELLEZ, unlawfully, knowingly and intentionally -
distributed marijuana.
In violation of 21 U.S.C. §§ 841(a)(1) and (b)(1)(D), and 18 U.S.C. § 2.
Count8
On or about November 25, 2014, in Chaves County, in the District of New Mexico, the
defendant, DOUGLAS K. MAYES, unlawfully, knowingly and intentionally posses#ed with
intent to distribute marijuana.
In violation of 21 U.S.C. §§ 841(a)(1) and (b)(1}D), and 18 U.S.C. § 2.
Count 9
On or about December 15, 2014, in Chaves County, in the District of New Mexico, the

defendants, CHRISTIAN HUGO CONTRERAS and HUGO ALEJANDRO LOPEZ-

18
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TELLEZ, unlawfully, knowingly and intentionally did use a communication facility, to wit: a
telephone, to further the commission of a drug trafficking crime, to wit: conspiracy to possess
with intent to distribute a controlled substance, contrary to 21 U.S.C. § 846,
In violation of 21 U.S.C. § 843(b); and 18 U.S.C. § 2.
Count 10
On or about December 19, 2014, in Chaves County, in the District of New Mexico, the
defendants, CHRISTIAN HUGO CONTRERAS and HUGO ALEJANDRO LOPEZ-
TELLEZ, unlawfully, knowingly and intentionally did use a communication facility, to wit: a
telephone, to fuﬁher the commission of a drug trafficking crime, to wit: conspiracy to possess
with intent to distribute a controlled substance, contrary to 21 U.S.C. § 846.
In violation of 21 U.S.C. § 843(b), and 18 U.S.C. § 2.
Count 11
On or about January 15, 2015, in Eddy County, in the District of New Mexico, the
defendants, CHRISTIAN HUGO CONTRERAS, CLAUDIA BERENICE HERNANDEZ
and OMAR ORTIZ, unlawfully, knowingly and intentionally possessed with intent to distribute
marijuana.
In violation of 21 U.S.C. §§ 841{a)(1) and (b)(1)(D), and 18 U.S.C. § 2.
| Count 12
On or about January 16, 2015, in Chaves County, in the District of New Mexico, the
defendants, CHRISTIAN HUGO CONTRERAS and HUGO ALEJANDRO LOPEZ-
TELLEZ, unlawfully, knowingly and intentionally did use a communication facility, to wit: a
telephone, to further the commission ofa drug trafficking crime, to wit: conspiracy to possess

with intent to distribute a controlled substance, contrary to 21 U.S.C. § 846.

19
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In violation of 21 U.8.C. § 843(b), and 18 U.S.C. § 2.
Count 13

On or about January 17, 2015, in Chaves County, in the District of New Mexico, the
defendants, CHRISTIAN HUGO CONTRERAS, CLAUDIA BERENICE HERNANDEZ
and
OMAR ORTIZ, unlawfully, knowingly and intentionally possessed with intent to distribute
marijuana.

In violation of 21 U.S.C. §§ 841(a)(1) and (b)(1)(D), and 18 U.S.C. § 2.

Count 14

On or about January 17, 2015, in Chaves County, in the District of New Mexico, the
defendant, HUGO ALEJANDRO LOPEZ-TELLEZ, unlawfully, knowingly and intentionally
distributed marijuana.

In violation of 21 U.S.C. §§ 841(a)(1) and (b)(1)}(D), and 18 US.C. § 2.

Count 15

On or about January 17, 2015, in Chaves County, in the District of New Mexico, the
defendant, DOUGLAS K. MAYES, unlawfully, knowingly and intentionally possessed with
intent to distribute marijuana. |

In violation of 21 U.S.C. §§ 841(a)(1) and (b)(1)(D), and 18 U.S.C. § 2.

Count 16

On or about January 28, 20135, in Chaves County, in the District of New Mexico, the

defendants, HUGO ALEJANDRO LOPEZ-TELLEZ and DOUGLAS K. MAYES, |

-unlawfully, knowingly and intentionally did use a communication facility, to wit: a telephone, to

20



Case 5:15-cr-01415-RB  Document 2 Filed 04/22/15 Page 21 of 29

further the commission of a drug trafficking crimé, to wit: conspiracy to possess with intent to
distribute a controlied substance, contrary to 21 U.S.C. § 846.

In violatjon of 21 U.S.C. § 843(b), and 18 U.S.C. § 2.

Count 17
~ Onor about January 28, 2015, in Chaves County, in the District of New Mexico, the

defendants, CHRISTIAN HUGO CONTRERAS aﬁd HUGO ALEJANDRO LOPEZ-
TELLEZ, unlawfully, knowingly and intentionally did use a communication facility, to wit: a
telephone, to further the commission of a drug trafficking crime, to wit: conspiracy to possess
with intent to distribute a controlled substance, contrary to 21 U.8.C. § 846,

In violation of 21 U.S.C. § 843(b), and 18 U.S.C. § 2.

Count 18
On or about January 31, 2015, in Eddy County, in the District of New Mexico, the
defendants, CHRISTIAN HUGO CONTRERAS, CLAUDIA BERENICE HERNANDEZ
and OMAR ORTIZ, unlawfully, knowingly.and intentionally possessed with intent to distribute
marijuana.
In violation of 21 U.S.C. §§ 841(a)(1) and (b)(1}D), and 18 U.S.C. § 2.
Count 19
On or about January 31, 20135, in Eddy County, in the District of New Mexico, the
defendants, JESUS NOE LOPEZ-TELLEZ, CLAUDIA BERENICE HERNANDEZ and
OMAR ORTIZ, did knowingly conduct and attempt to cohduct a financial transaction affecting
interstate and foreign commerce, specifically, to deliver of $10,1135 in drug proceeds, which
involved the proceeds of a specified unlawful activity, possession with intent to distribute

marijuana, knowing that the transaction was designed in whole and in part to conceal and
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disguise the nature, location and source of the proceeds of said specified unlawful activity and
that while conducting and attempting to conduct such financial transaction, knew that the
property involved in the financial transaction represented the proceeds of -some form of unlawful
activify.
In violation of 18 U.S.C. §§ 1956(a)1)(B)(i), and 2.
 Count 20
On or about January 31, 2015, in Chaves County, in the District of New Mexico, the |
defendants, CHRISTIAN HUGO CONTRERAS and HUGO ALEJANDRO LOPEZ-
TELLEZ, unlawfully, knowingly and intentionally did use a communication facility, to wit: a
telephone, to further the commission of a drug trafficking crime, to wit: conspiracy to possess
»yith intent to distribute a controlled substance, contrary to 21 U.S.C. § 846.
In violation of 21 U.S.C. § 843(b), and 18 U.S.C. .§ 2.
Count 21
On or about February 1, 2015, in Chaves County, in the District of New Mexico, the
defendants, CHRISTIAN HUGO CONTRERAS, CLAUDIA BERENICE HERNANDEZ
and OMAR ORTIZ, unlawfully, knowingly and intentionally possessed with intent to distribute
marijuana,
In violation of 21 U.S.C. §§ 841(a)(1) and (b)(1)(D), and 18 U.S.C. § 2.
Count 22
On or about February 1, 20_15, in Chaves County, in the District of New Mexico, the
defendant, HUGO ALEJANDRO LOPEZ-TELLEZ, unlawfuily, knowingly and intentionally

distributed marijuana.

In violation of 21 U.S.C. §§7 841(a)(1) and (b)(1XD), and 18 U.S.C. § 2.
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Count 23

On or about February 1, 2015, in Chaves County, in the District of New Mexico, the |
defendant, DOUGLAS K. MAYES, unlawfully, knowingly and intentionally possessed with
intent to distribute marijuana.

In violation of 21 U.S.C. §§ 841(a)(1), and (b)(1)(D), and 18 U.S.C. § 2.

Count 24

On or about February 14, 2015, in Chaves County, in the District of New Mexico, the
defendants, CHRISTIAN HUGO CONTRERAS and HUGO ALEJANDRO LOPEZ-
TELLEZ, unlawfully, knowingly and intentionally did use a communication fagility, to wit: a
telephone, to further the comrn.ission of a drug trafficking crime, to wit: conspiracy 10 possess
with intent to distribute a controlled substance, confrary to 21 U.S.C, § 846.

In violation of 21 U.S.C. § 843(b), and 18 U.S.C. § 2.

Count 25
On or about February 14, 2015, in Chaves County, in the District of New Mexico, the
defendants, CHRISTIAN HUGO CONTRERAS, CLAUDIA BERENICE HERNANDEZ
and OMAR ORTIZ, unlawfully, knowingly and intentiolnally possessed with intent to distribute
marijuana.
In violation of 21 U.S.C. §§ 841(a)(1) and (b)(1X(D), and 18 US.C. § 2. _
Count 26 |
On or about February 14, 2015, in Chaves County, in the District of Ncw Mexico, the
defendant, HUGO ALEJANDRO LOPEZ-TELLEZ, unlawfully, knowingly and intentionally
distributed marijﬁana. | |

In violation of 21 U.S.C. §§ 841(a)(1) and (b)(1)(D), and 18 U.S.C, § 2.
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Count 27
On or about February 14, 2015, in Chaves County, in the District of New Mexico, the
defendant, DOUGLAS K. MAYES, unlawfully, knowingly and intentionally possessed with
intent to distribute marijuana. |
In violation of 21 U.S.C. §§ 841(a)(1) and (b)(1)(D), and 18 U.S.C. § 2.
Count 28 |
On or about February 18, 2015, in Eddy County, in the District of New Mexico, the
defendants, CHRISTIAN HUGO CONTRERAS, CLAUDIA BERENICE HERNANDEZ
and OMAR ORTIZ, unlawfislly, knowingly and intentionally possessed with intent to distribute
marijuana.
In violation of 21 U.3.C. §§ 841(a)(1) and (b)}(1)(D), and 18 U.S.C. § 2.
| Count 29
On or about February 21, 2015, in Chaves County, in the District of New Mexico, the
defendants, CHRISTIAN HUGO CONTRERAS and HUGO ALEJANDRO LOPEZ-
TELLEZ, unlawfully, knowingly and intentionally did use a communication facility, to wit: a
telephone, to further the commission of a drug trafficking crime, tq wit: conspiracy to possess
with intent to distribute a controlled substance, contrary to 21 U.S.C. § 846.
In violation of 21 U.S.C. § 843(b), and 18 U.S.C. § 2.
Count 30
On or about February 21, 2015, in Chaves County, in the District of New Mexico, the
defendants, CHRISTIAN HUGO CONTRERAS, CLAUDIA BERENICE HERNANDEZ
and OMAR ORTIZ, unlawfully, knowingly and intentionally possessed with intent to distribute

marijuana.
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In violation of 21 U.S.C. §§ 841(a)(1) and (b)(1)(D), and 18 U.S.C. § 2.
Count 31
On or about February 21, 2015, in Chaves County, in the District of New Mexico, the
defendant, HUGO ALEJANDRQ LOPEZ-TELLEZ, unlawfully, knowingly and intentionally
distributed marijuana.
In violation of 21 U.S.C. §§ 841(a)(1) and (b)(1X(D), and 18 U.S.C. § 2.
Count32
On or about February 21, 2015, in Chaves County, in the District of New Mexico, the
defendant, DOUGLAS K. MAYES, unlawfully, knowingly and intentionally distributed

marijuana.

In violation of 21 U.S.C. §§ 841(2)(1) and (b)(1)(D), and 18 U.S.C. § 2.

Count 33
On or about February 21, 2015, in Chaves County, in the District of New Mexico, the
defendant, ARTHUR LUNA, unlawfully, knowingly and intentionally possessed with intent to
distribute marijuana.
In violation of 21 U.S.C. §§ 841(a)(1) and (b)}(1)(D), and 18 U.S.C. § 2.
Count 34 |
On or about March 6, 2015, in Lea County, in the District of New Mexico, the
defendants, CHRISTIAN HUGO CONTRERAS, CLAUDIA BERENICE HERNANDEZ
and OMAR ORTIZ, unlawfully, knowingly and intentionally possessed with intent to distribute
marijuana,

In violation of 21 U.S.C. §§ 841(a)(1) and (b)(1)(D), and 18 U.S.C. § 2.
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Count 35
On or about March 14, 2015, in Chaves County, in the District of New Mexico, the
defendants, CHRISTIAN HUGO CONTRERAS and HUGO ALEJANDRO LOPEZ-
TELLEZ, unlawfully, knowingly and intentionally did use a communication facility, to wit: a
.telephone, to further the commission of a drug trafficking crime, to wit: conspiracy to possess
with intent to distribute a controlled substance, contrary {o 21 U.S.C. § 846.
In violation of 21 U.S.C. § 843(b),and 18 U.S.C. § 2.
Count 36
On or about March 6, 2015, in Chafes County, in the District of New Mexico, the
defendants, CHRISTIAN 'H_UGO CONTRERAS, CLAUDIA BERENICE HERNANDEZ
and OMAR ORTIZ, unlawfully, knowingly and intentionally possessed with intent to distribute

marijuana.

In violation of 21 U.S.C. §§ 841(a)(1) and (b)(1)(D), and 18 U.S.C. § 2.

Count 37
On or about Maréh 14, 2015, in Chaves County, in the District of New Mexico, the
defendant, HUGO ALEJANDRO LOPEZ-TELLEZ, unlawfully, knowingly and intentionally
distributed marijuana.
In violation of 21 U.S.C. §§ 841(a)(1) and (b)(1)(D), and 18 U.S.C. § 2.
Count 38
On or about March 14, 2015, in Chaves County, in the District of New Mexico, the
defendant, DOUGLAS K. MAYES, unlawfully, knowingly and intentionally possessed with

intent to distribute marijuana.

In violation of 21 U.S.C. §§ 841(a)(1) and (b)(1)}D), and 18 U.S.C. § 2.
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Count 39
On or about March 28, 20135, in Chaves County, in the District of New Mexico, the
defendants, CHRISTIAN HUGQ CONTRERAS, CLAUDIA BERENICE HERNANDEZ
and OMAR ORTIZ, unlawfully, knowingly and intentionally po;sessed with intent to distribute
marijuana. |
In violation of 21 U.S.C. §§ 841(a)(1) and (b)(1)(D), and 18US.C.§2.
Count 40
On or about March 28, 2015, in Chaves County, in the District of New Mexico, the
defendant, HUGO ALEJANDRO LOPEZ-TELLEZ, unlawfully, knowingly and intentioné]ly
distributed marijuana.
In violation of 21 U.S.C. §§ 841(a)(1) and (b)(1)(D), and 18 US.C. § 2.
| Count 41
On or about March 28, 2015, in Chaves County, in the District of New Mexico,_ the
defendant, DOUGLAS K. MAYES, unlawfully, knowingly and intentionally possessed with
intent to distribute marijuana.
In violation of 21 U.S:C. §§ 841(a)(1) and (b)(1)(D), and 18 US.C. § 2.
Count 42
On or about March 28, 201 5, in Eddy County,-in the District of New Mexico, the
defendants, CHRISTIAN HUGO CONTRERAS, HUGO ALEJANDRO LOPEZ-TELLEZ,
DOUGLAS K. MAYES, CLAUDIA BERENICE HERNANDEZ and OMAR ORTIZ, did
knowingly conduct and aﬁempt to conductl a financial transaction affecting interstate and foreign
commerce, specifically, to deliver $12,051 in drug proceeds, which involved the proceeds of a

specified unlawful activity, possession with intent to distribute marijuana, knowing that the
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transaction was designed in whole and in paﬁ to conceal and disguise the nature, location and
source of the proceeds of said specified unlawful activity and that while conducting and
attempting to conduct such financial transaction, knew that the property involved in the financial
transaction represented the proceeds of some form of unlawful activity.
In violation of 18 U.8.C. §§ 1956(a)(1)(B)(i), and 2.
FORFEITURE ALLEGATION

The allegations set forth in Counts 1 through 42 of this Indictment are hereby realleged
and incorporated herein by reference for the pur.pose' of alleging forfeiture pursuant to the
provision of 21 U.8.C. § 853.

Upon conviction of any offense in violation Qf 21 U.S.C. §§ 841 and 846, the defendants,
RODOLFO LOPEZ, MAYRA ELIZABETH MARTINEZ-GIRON, CHRISTIAN HUGO
CONTRERAS, JESUS NOE LOPEZ-TELLEZ, HUGO ALEJANDRO LOPEZ-TELLEZ,
ANDREW OCANAS GARZA, DOUGLAS K. MAYES, CLAUDIA BERENICE
HERNANDEZ, OMAR ORTIZ, and ARTHUR LUNA, shall forfeit to the United States
pursuant to 21 U.8.C. § 853 any property constituting, or derived from, proceeds obtained,
directly or indirectly, as a result of each offense for which the defendants are convicted, and any
property used, or intended to be used, in any manner or part, to commit, or to facilitate the
commission of the said offenses.

If any property being subject to forfeiture pursuant to Title 18, United States Code,
Section 981(a)( 1.) and Title 28, United States Code, Section 2461(0), as a result of any act or
omission of the defendants: |

a. cannot be located upon the exercise of due diligence;

b. has been transferred or sold to, or deposited with, a third party;
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c. has been placed beyond the jurisdiction of the court;
| d has been substantially diminished in value, or;
e. has been commingled with other property that cannot be divided without
difficuity; |

it is the intent of the United States of America to seek forfeiture of any properties of the

defendants up to $136,750 in United States Currency.
A TRUE BILL:

/s/ :

FOREPERSON OF THE GRAND JURY

29



